
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
WEDNESDAY 20TH MAY 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Independent Members: Mr. N. A. Burke, Ms. D. Roberts and Mrs. N. E. 

Trigg 
Councillors: Miss D. H. Campbell JP, Mrs. A. E. Doyle and E. C. Tibby 
Parish Councils' Representatives: Mr. J. Cypher and Mr. I. A. Hodgetts 

 Observer: Mr. S. Malek (Non-voting Deputy Parish Councils' 
Representative) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Election of Chairman for the ensuing municipal year  
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman for the ensuing municipal year  
 

3. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

4. Declarations of Interest  
 

5. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Standards 
Committee held on 31st March 2009 (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

6. Council Decisions (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
[To receive a report informing the Committee of the decisions made by the 
Council at its meeting on 29th April 2009 in relation to the terms of office of the 
Parish Council's Representatives on the Standards Committee and the 
Planning Services Code of Practice.]   
 

7. Standards Board for England final reports on alleged breaches of the 
Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct (Pages 17 - 28) 
 



- 2 - 

[To note the position in relation to the final reports of the Standards Board for 
England's Ethical Standards Officer on investigations undertaken following 
three separate complaints against a District Councillor for alleged breaches of 
the Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct.]  
 

8. Monitoring Officer's Report (Pages 29 - 40) 
 
[To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer on matters of relevance to the 
Committee.]  
 

9. Parish Councils' Representatives Report  
 
[To receive an oral update from the Parish Councils' Representatives on any 
matters of relevance to the Committee.]  
 

10. Review of the Local Assessment Regime (Pages 41 - 52) 
 
[To receive a report on the findings of the review undertaken by officers on 
certain aspects of the local assessment of complaints about Members 
regime.]  
 

11. Review of operation of the Committee  
 
[Members are asked to give consideration to the general operation of the 
Committee over the last twelve months and to comment on any aspects of this 
as appropriate.  No separate report.]  
 

12. Work Programme (Pages 53 - 58) 
 
[To consider the future Work Programme of the Committee.]  
 

13. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 

14. To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following resolution to 
exclude the public from the meeting during the consideration of item(s) of 
business containing exempt and/or confidential information:  
 
"RESOLVED: that the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds: 
 
a) that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 



- 3 - 

Schedule 12A to the Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part 
being as set out below, and that it is in the public interest to do so: 
 
Item No. Paragraph(s)  
15 & 16 1, 2, 3 & 7A; and 

 
b) that under Section 100 A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, 
they involve the likely disclosure of confidential information, namely 
information provided under Section 63 of the Local Government Act as part of 
an Ethical Standards Officer's investigation under Part III of the Local 
Government Act 2000: 
 
Item No. 
15 & 16." 

  
15. To confirm the accuracy of the confidential minutes of the meeting of the 

Standards Committee held on 31st March 2009 (Pages 59 - 60) 
 

16. Standards Board for England final reports on alleged breaches of the 
Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct (Pages 61 - 94) 
 
[To note the final reports of the Standards Board for England's Ethical 
Standards Officer on investigations undertaken following three separate 
complaints against a District Councillor for alleged breaches of the 
Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct.] 
  
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

 
 
The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
12th May 2009 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY, 31ST MARCH 2009 AT 4.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Independent Members: Mrs. N. E. Trigg (Chairman), Mr. N. A. Burke 
(Vice-Chairman) and Ms. D. Roberts 
Councillors: Miss D. H. Campbell JP (during Minute No's. 51/08 to part of 
59/08 and 67/08 and 68/08), S. P. Shannon and E. C. Tibby  
Parish Councils' Representatives: Mr. J. Cypher and Mr. I. A. Hodgetts 
 

 Officers: Mrs. C. Felton, Mrs. D. Warren and Ms. D. Parker-Jones 
 
 

51/08 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology was received from Mr. S. Malek, non-voting Deputy Parish 
Councils' Representative on the Committee and Committee observer. 
 

52/08 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

53/08 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 11th 
December 2008 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

54/08 STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND FINAL REPORT ON ALLEGED 
BREACHES OF PARISH AND DISTRICT CODES OF CONDUCT  
 
Further to a referral from the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee in July 
2008, the Committee received, for information only, the final report of the 
Standards Board for England's Ethical Standards Officer on the outcome of 
the investigation into an allegation that Councillor Roger Hollingworth had 
breached both the Alvechurch Parish Council and Bromsgrove District Council 
Codes of Conduct.  It was the finding of the Ethical Standards Officer that 
there was no evidence of any failure by Councillor Hollingworth to comply with 
either of the Codes of Conduct in question.  
 
A copy of the Ethical Standards Officer's final report, which was confidential as 
it contained exempt information in accordance with paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and & 
7A of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, 
appeared later in the agenda, with a copy of the Standards Board's public 
case summary of the report appearing in the open part of the agenda.  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED that the Standards Board for England's Ethical Standards 
Officer's finding of no breach in relation to the allegations against Councillor 
Hollingworth be noted.     
 

55/08 MONITORING OFFICER'S REPORT  
 
The Committee noted the report of the Monitoring Officer and the following 
issues were raised: 
 
Member Investigations and Associated Matters  
 
Officers advised of an amendment to the figures detailed in the Local 
Assessment Statistics table appended to the report, in that of the 15 
complaints received since the introduction of local assessment, 8 had resulted 
in no further action being taken, with 5 having been referred to the Standards 
Board for England for investigation.  The outcomes of all of the Standards 
Board investigations had now been received, all of which had resulted in a 
finding of no breach of the Code of Conduct.  A report detailing the Standards 
Board's public case summaries for 2 of the complaints appeared separately in 
the agenda, with the remaining 3 cases to be reported on at the next meeting 
of the Committee in May. 
 
The Committee requested that a future breakdown be provided as to the 
nature of the complaints received.  It was also agreed that Sub-Committee 
decision notices would be copied to all members of the Standards Committee 
in future in order to keep members updated with complaints. 
 
New Local Performance Indicator - public awareness of the elected Member 
complaints system 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised of the likelihood, at some point in the future, of 
the introduction of a national performance indicator relating to public 
awareness of the elected Member complaints system.  In anticipation of this, a 
new local indicator had been included in the Council's Business Plan on the 
percentage of people who were aware of the system.  The Monitoring Officer 
detailed existing Council mechanisms which could be utilised in this regard, 
which would also be useful in publicising the system generally.  Articles had 
appeared in both the local press and the Council's 'Together Bromsgrove' 
publication, with a future regular slot in Together Bromsgrove to be looked at.   
 
In addition to raising public awareness of the complaints process, positive 
marketing of both the Members' Code of Conduct and the Standards 
Committee was felt to be of equal importance; to ensure the public, at both 
district and parish level, was fully aware of the ethical governance framework 
in local government.  Members suggested that there could be a publicity stand 
at any relevant Council/community events and that the Worcestershire Hub 
could be used as a means for promoting the key elements of the ethical 
framework, with accompanying literature to be drawn up for this. 
 
It was noted that public awareness of the elected Member complaints system 
was linked to the Review of Local Assessment and Determination of 

Page 2



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 3 - 

Complaints report at agenda item 9, which would involve the Committee 
prioritising the various aspects of the work required for the review.     
 
Redditch Borough Council's Standards Committee 
 
The assistance available to Redditch Borough Council's Standards 
Committee, should a request for such assistance be made to Bromsgrove 
District Council, was noted. 
 
West Mercia Forum of Independent Members 
 
Ms. Roberts, Mr. Cypher and Mr. Hodgetts provided feedback on the West 
Mercia Independent Members' Forum meeting which they had attended on 4th 
February 2009, which they had found to be very interesting and informative.  
Dr Robert Chilton, Chair of the Standards Board, was guest speaker at the 
Forum and had given a speech on the Standard's Board's direction of travel. 
 
A number of issues had been discussed at the meeting, including problems 
which had arisen with parish and town councils, which it was noted had arisen 
mostly as a result of such councils not having their own membership body 
which they could approach for advice and assistance.  The Monitoring Officer 
stated that the visits which she and the Deputy Monitoring Officer had 
undertaken to parish councils within the district had assisted in averting 
procedural downfalls, and that whilst parish councils might not always have 
operated within the required structures this had in no way been intentional but 
had arisen as a result of their being unaware of the requirements.  The 
proposed establishment of a training programme for the parish councils on 
ethical governance issues (for which a separate report appeared later in the 
agenda) would also assist with this. 
 
A member of the Committee who had also been a parish councillor 
commented that they did not think the public was aware of the systems in 
place for making complaints against parish councillors, which again would be 
addressed as part of the Review of Local Assessment and Determination of 
Complaints report later in the agenda. 
 
Update on referral of complaint to Monitoring Officer for Investigation 
 
The Chairman sought clarification on the current position in relation to the 
complaint which the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee had referred to 
the Monitoring Officer for local investigation.   
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer advised that the matter had been referred to 
the Council's Investigating Officer and that once the Investigating Officer's final 
report was available a meeting of the Standards Committee would be 
convened in accordance with Regulation 17 of The Standards Committee 
(England) Regulations 2008.  At that meeting, and on consideration of the 
report, the Committee would be required to make one of the following findings: 
 
(i) that it accepted the Monitoring Officer's finding of no failure (a finding of 

acceptance); or 

Page 3



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 4 - 

(ii) that the matter should be considered at a hearing of the Standards 
Committee conducted under Regulation 18 (of the said Regulations); or 

(iii) that the matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel for England 
for determination.   

 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the report be noted; and 
(b) that any action points detailed in the preamble above be acted upon 

and reported back to the Committee as appropriate.  
 

56/08 PARISH COUNCILS' REPRESENTATIVES' REPORT  
 
Mr. Cypher referred to the separate reports which appeared later in the 
agenda in relation to the establishment of a training programme on ethical 
governance issues for the parish councils and the terms of office of Parish 
Councils' Representatives on the Standards Committee, the proposals for 
which had been considered by and had received support from the Bromsgrove 
Area Committee of the Worcestershire County Association of Local Councils 
('CALC'). 
 
RESOLVED that the position be noted. 
 

57/08 TRAINING PROGRAMME FOR PARISH COUNCILS  
 
Consideration was given to a report which proposed the establishment of a 
training programme for the parish councils on ethical governance issues.  It 
was noted that both the Bromsgrove Area Committee of the Worcestershire 
County Association of Local Councils ('CALC') and the Parish Councils' Forum 
had been consulted on the proposal and were in support of this. 
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer advised that officers would begin rolling out the 
programme of training to the parishes once the new Members' Code of 
Conduct had been had been published and the accompanying guidance 
distributed.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the proposal for the establishment of an ethical governance training 

programme for the parish councils be approved; 
(b) that the Monitoring Officer be charged with formulating such a training 

programme, based on the wishes of the parish councils and in 
accordance with the general terms outlined in the report; 

(c) that details of the final training programme be referred to the Standards 
Committee for information; and 

(d) that authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with 
the Chairman of the Standards Committee, to make any necessary 
changes to the training programme in the light of any significant changes 
to the Members’ Code of Conduct and/or new guidance/legislation issued 
in relation to ethical governance. 

 
 

Page 4



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 5 - 

58/08 TERMS OF OFFICE OF PARISH COUNCILS' REPRESENTATIVES ON THE 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
The Committee considered a report which contained proposals to extend, for 
the 2009 appointments, the current terms of office of the Parish Councils' 
Representatives (including the Deputy Parish Councils' Representative) on the 
Standards Committee, and for a further review of the terms of office of the 
parish representatives to take place in 2011, in line with the next round of 
parish council elections.   
 
Mr. Hodgetts and Mr. Cypher, the Parish Councils' Representatives on the 
Committee, advised that the Bromsgrove Area Committee of the 
Worcestershire County Association of Local Councils ('CALC') had considered 
the proposals at its meeting on 4th March 2009 and was in support of these.   
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that the terms of office of the Parish Councils' Representatives on the 

Standards Committee for 2009 be extended from one year to two 
years; and 

(b) that a further review of the terms of office of the Parish Councils' 
Representatives be undertaken in 2011, following the next round of 
parish council elections. 

 
59/08 REVIEW OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT AND DETERMINATION OF 

COMPLAINTS  
 
The Committee considered a report on a review of the local assessment and 
determination of complaints process which had been introduced in May 2008 
and for which the Standards Committee had adopted processes and 
procedures for a trial period of 12 months.   
 
Members agreed the extent and timetable of the review (as per the table 
appended to these minutes), with a report on the high priority areas to be 
referred to the May meeting of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the table of items and priorities for the review of local 
assessment and determination of complaints appended to these minutes be 
approved.         
 

60/08 OMBUDSMAN STATISTICS  
 
Members received a report which provided a six monthly update on 
Ombudsman statistics. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the contents of the report be noted; and 
(b) that the Committee Work Programme be amended to include two 

reports on Ombudsman statistics per year as follows: 
(i) full report in September, to include the annual statistics (final 

version) and comparison with other neighbouring authorities; and 

Page 5



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 6 - 

(ii) interim update (based on records maintained by the Senior 
Solicitor) in February/March. 

 
61/08 REVIEW OF PROTOCOL ON RELATIONS BETWEEN MEMBERS  

 
Further to Minute 48/08 of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 
11th December 2008, the Committee considered a report which asked 
whether a recommendation should be made to full Council that the Protocol 
on Relations between Members be reviewed. 
 
It was noted from the report that the Group Leaders had been consulted on 
the Protocol and that they generally welcomed the existence of this as it gave 
a framework within which they could resolve any inter-Member issues in a 
structured, albeit informal, manner.  Members had confirmed that there were a 
number of instances when they had relied on the Protocol to resolve issues 
and had found that it had worked. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that no recommendation be made to full Council that the Protocol on 

Relations between Members be reviewed; and 
(b) that the Protocol be looked at by the Standards Committee again in 

twelve months' time. 
 

62/08 REVIEW OF MEMBER-OFFICER PROTOCOL  
 
Further to Minute 49/08 of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 
11th December 2008, the Committee considered a report which asked 
whether a recommendation should be made to full Council that the Member-
Officer Protocol be reviewed. 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that the views of the Group Leaders as to the 
operation and effectiveness of the Protocol had been sought and that the 
Leaders felt the Protocol to have been well used, with this having been 
referred to on a frequent basis, and that they would be reluctant to lose this as 
they were satisfied that the current process worked well.  Officer feedback on 
the Protocol had also been positive, with it being deemed an example of good 
practice for such a protocol to be in place. 
 
It was noted that some general references in the Protocol were out of date 
and that officers would therefore need to make a few minor amendments to 
this. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that, whilst noting some minor amendments were required to the 

Member-Officer Protocol, no recommendation be made to full Council 
that the Protocol be reviewed; and 

(b) that the Protocol be looked at by the Standards Committee again in 
twelve months' time. 

 
 
 

Page 6



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 7 - 

63/08 PLANNING SERVICES CODE OF PRACTICE  
 
The Committee considered a report which recommended that the Council's 
Planning Services Code of Practice be reviewed and which sought 
suggestions from Members for areas for consideration for inclusion in the 
review. 
 
Officers advised that the Association of Council Secretaries and Solicitors had 
recently updated the Model Members' Planning Code of Good Practice and 
that the Council's current Code was out of date. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that a review of the Council's Planning Services Code of Practice be 

undertaken by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with Group 
Leaders, the Planning Committee, the Standards Committee and 
individual Members; and 

(b) that the scope of the review also include the Planning Committee 
Procedure Rules contained within the Council's Constitution and the 
Public Speaking at Planning Committee Meetings guidance leaflet to 
see whether any aspects of these could be combined. 

 
64/08 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS - 2009/10  

 
A report advising of the meeting dates of the Standards Committee for the 
2009/10 Municipal Year was submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the Calendar of Meetings for the Standards Committee for 
2009/10 be noted. 
 

65/08 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Consideration was given to the Committee's Work Programme. 
 
RESOLVED that, subject to the proposed changes to the Work Programme 
highlighted in the report, together with the decisions made earlier in the 
meeting in relation to the Committee's consideration of future reviews of the 
Protocol on Relations between Members and the Member-Officer Protocol, the 
Work Programme be approved. 
 

66/08 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED that, under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part being as set out below, 
and that it was in the public interest to do so: 
 
   Minute No.     Paragraph(s) 
        67/08           1, 2, 3 & 7A 
        68/08                   7A 

Page 7



Standards Committee 
31st March 2009 

- 8 - 

 
67/08 STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND FINAL REPORT ON ALLEGED 

BREACHES OF PARISH AND DISTRICT COUNCIL CODES OF CONDUCT  
 
Further to Minute 54/08 above, the Committee received, for information only, 
the final report of the Standards Board for England's Ethical Standards Officer 
on the outcome of the investigation into an allegation that Councillor Roger 
Hollingworth had breached both the Alvechurch Parish Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council Codes of Conduct.  It was the finding of the 
Ethical Standards Officer that there was no evidence of any failure by 
Councillor Hollingworth to comply with either of the Codes of Conduct in 
question.  
 
In a covering letter which accompanied the Ethical Standards Officer's report 
the Committee had been invited to comment to the Standards Board on the 
helpfulness of receiving such reports of investigations, and on anything that 
might make the reports more useful in the future.  The Committee therefore 
agreed a response in this regard. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the Standards Board for England's Ethical Standards Officer's 

finding of no breach in relation to the allegations against Councillor 
Hollingworth be noted; and 

(b) that officers write to the Standards Board with the Committee's views 
on the helpfulness of the Ethical Standards Officer's final report. 

 
68/08 MONITORING OFFICER'S CONFIDENTIAL REPORT  

 
The Committee received a confidential report of the Monitoring Officer on a 
matter which was exempt in accordance with paragraph 7A of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, as it 
contained information which was subject to an obligation of confidentiality. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

The meeting closed at 6.03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 8



Ag
ree

d i
tem

s a
nd

 pr
ior

itie
s f

or
 th

e r
ev

iew
 of

 lo
ca

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 de

ter
mi

na
tio

n o
f c

om
pla

int
s 

  
Su

mm
ary

 of
 is

su
e 

Re
as

on
/co

mm
en

ts 
Pr

ior
ity

 
1 

Re
vie

w 
of 

pu
bli

cit
y t

o t
he

 pr
oc

es
s 

• 
To

 en
su

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 le

ve
ls 

of 
aw

are
ne

ss
. 

• 
A n

ew
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
dic

ato
r is

 to
 be

 
int

rod
uc

ed
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

the
 %

 of
 

pe
op

le 
wh

o a
re 

aw
are

 of
 th

e e
lec

ted
 

me
mb

er 
co

mp
lai

nts
 sy

ste
m.

 

Hig
h 

 
No

te:
 I

n r
ela

tio
n t

o 1
 ab

ov
e, 

it w
as

 ag
ree

d t
ha

t th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
lin

k i
n w

ith
 pu

bli
cit

y o
f b

oth
 th

e M
em

be
rs'

 C
od

e o
f C

on
du

ct
 

an
d t

he
 w

ork
/ro

le 
of 

the
 St

an
da

rds
 C

om
mi

tte
e, 

su
ch

 pu
bli

cit
y t

o b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 at
 bo

th 
dis

tric
t a

nd
 pa

ris
h l

ev
el.

 
2 

Jo
int

 w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 ne

igh
bo

uri
ng

 au
tho

riti
es

 
• 

Re
gu

lat
ion

s t
o b

e p
ub

lish
ed

 in
 M

ay
 to

 
en

ab
le 

thi
s. 

Lo
w 

 
  

3 
Co

ns
titu

tio
n o

f th
e m

ain
 St

an
da

rds
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

• 
Ar

e t
he

re 
su

ffic
ien

t m
em

be
rs 

to 
de

al 
ap

pro
pri

ate
ly 

wit
h a

ll a
sp

ec
ts 

of 
the

 
pro

ce
ss

?  
Sh

ou
ld 

a r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 

to 
Co

un
cil 

be
 co

ns
ide

red
 to

 in
cre

as
e 

the
 si

ze
 of

 th
e C

om
mi

tte
e?

 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
the

re 
be

 a 
Ca

bin
et 

me
mb

er 
on

 
the

 C
om

mi
tte

e?
 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

pa
ris

h r
ep

res
en

tat
ive

s b
e 

ele
cte

d (
as

 op
po

se
d t

o c
o-o

pte
d?

) 

Hig
h 

4 
Co

mp
os

itio
n o

f th
e s

ub
-co

mm
itte

es
 

• 
Se

pa
rat

ion
 of

 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
of 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
an

d f
ina

l d
ete

rm
ina

tio
n 

su
b-c

om
mi

tte
es

? 
• 

Ar
e t

he
 su

b-c
om

mi
tte

es
 w

ork
ing

 w
ell

? 
• 

Fin
al 

De
ter

mi
na

tio
n S

ub
-C

om
mi

tte
e 

co
mp

os
itio

n –
 sh

ou
ld 

it b
e r

ev
isit

ed
? 

De
fer

 un
til 

ha
ve

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e o

f fi
na

l 
de

ter
mi

na
tio

n h
ea

rin
gs

. 
 

5 
Re

ce
ipt

 of
 In

ve
sti

ga
tin

g O
ffic

er’
s r

ep
ort

 
(R

eg
ula

tio
n 1

7(1
) h

ea
rin

g) 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
thi

s b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 by
 th

e f
ull

 
Sta

nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte

e o
r a

 su
b-

co
mm

itte
e?

 
De

fer
 un

til 
ha

ve
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e o
f h

ea
rin

gs
. 

   

Appendix

Page 1Page 9



 6 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O

ffic
er 

pre
-co

mp
lai

nt 
pro

toc
ol 

•  
So

me
 au

tho
riti

es
 in

str
uc

t th
e M

O 
to 

try
 

to 
res

olv
e c

om
pla

int
s b

efo
re 

ref
err

ing
 

the
m 

to 
the

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Su

b-
Co

mm
itte

e –
 sh

ou
ld 

thi
s b

e 
co

ns
ide

red
?  

Re
jec

ted
 ou

trig
ht 

7 
Co

mp
lai

nt 
for

m 
to 

be
 re

vie
we

d 
• 

To
 co

ns
ide

r it
 fro

m 
the

 pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e o
f 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
it b

e m
ore

 sp
ec

ific
 in

 te
rm

s o
f 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 th
e p

art
 of

 th
e C

od
e w

hic
h 

ha
s b

ee
n b

rea
ch

ed
? 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

it a
sk

 th
e c

om
pla

ina
nt 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 re

me
dy

 so
ug

ht 
(to

 id
en

tify
 

co
mp

lai
nts

 ab
ou

t s
erv

ice
 de

live
ry 

etc
 

rat
he

r th
an

 co
nd

uc
t). 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

it b
e s

cra
pp

ed
? 

8 
Gu

ida
nc

e t
o b

e r
ev

iew
ed

 
• 

To
 co

ns
ide

r it
 fro

m 
the

 pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e o
f 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e p

ub
lic.

 
• 

Inc
lus

ion
 of

 flo
w 

ch
art

s. 
9 

Re
vie

w 
of 

we
bs

ite
 

• 
To

 co
ns

ide
r it

 fro
m 

the
 pe

rsp
ec

tiv
e o

f 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e p
ub

lic.
 

• 
Su

bm
iss

ion
 of

 co
mp

lai
nts

 on
-lin

e. 

Hig
h 

(7,
 8 

& 9
 to

 be
 ta

ke
n 

tog
eth

er)
  

10
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

rep
ort

 pr
es

en
ted

 to
 th

e 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

Su
b-C

om
mi

tte
e 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

it i
nc

lud
e a

 su
gg

es
tio

n a
s t

o 
the

 pa
rt o

f th
e C

od
e w

hic
h m

ay
 ha

ve
 

be
en

 br
ea

ch
ed

? 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
it i

nc
lud

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

fro
m 

off
ice

rs?
 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

it i
nc

lud
e t

ran
sc

rip
ts 

of 
me

eti
ng

s o
r o

the
r d

oc
um

en
tat

ion
 

oth
er 

tha
n m

inu
tes

 or
 ot

he
r p

ub
licl

y 
av

ail
ab

le 
do

cu
me

nts
? 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

the
 su

b-c
om

mi
tte

e’s
 po

we
rs 

be
 cl

ea
rly

 se
t o

ut?
 

Lo
w 

 

Page 2Page 10



11
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
cri

ter
ia 

• 
Th

es
e w

ere
 ba

se
d o

n t
ho

se
 in

 th
e 

SB
E g

uid
an

ce
.  B

as
ed

 on
 pr

ac
tic

al 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e, 

co
uld

 th
es

e b
e i

mp
rov

ed
? 

Hig
h 

12
 

No
tifi

ca
tio

n t
o s

ub
jec

t m
em

be
r o

f c
om

pla
int

 
• 

At 
wh

at 
po

int
 sh

ou
ld 

the
 su

bje
ct 

me
mb

er 
be

 no
tifi

ed
 of

 th
e c

om
pla

int
? 

Cu
rre

ntl
y t

he
y a

re 
no

t n
oti

fie
d u

nti
l 

aft
er 

the
 As

se
ss

me
nt 

Su
b-C

om
mi

tte
e 

ha
s m

et.
 

Hig
h 

13
 

De
cis

ion
 N

oti
ce

s 
• 

Th
es

e a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y b

as
ed

 on
 th

e S
BE

 
mo

de
l.  

Co
uld

 th
ey

 be
 im

pro
ve

d?
 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

the
y i

nc
lud

e d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 

me
mb

ers
 si

ttin
g o

n t
he

 co
mm

itte
e?

    
(N

B –
 co

ns
ide

r th
e d

iffe
ren

ce
 be

tw
ee

n 
Re

gu
lat

ion
 8 

an
d R

eg
ula

tio
n 1

1 n
oti

ce
s) 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

the
se

 be
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 m

ore
 

wid
ely

? 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
the

y i
nc

lud
e m

ore
 in

for
ma

tio
n 

ab
ou

t re
vie

w?
 

Hig
h 

14
 

Re
vie

w 
 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

a f
orm

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d s
en

t 
ou

t a
s a

 m
att

er 
of 

co
urs

e i
n t

he
 ca

se
 

of 
ea

ch
 ca

se
 no

t re
fer

red
 fo

r 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

? 
• 

Sh
ou

ld 
the

se
 ta

ke
 th

e f
orm

 of
 a 

re-
he

ari
ng

 or
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e a
de

qu
ac

y o
f 

the
 pr

oc
es

s?
  (T

he
re 

is 
a d

ive
rge

nc
e 

of 
op

ini
on

 on
 th

is 
in 

pra
cti

ce
.) 

• 
Sh

ou
ld 

the
 sa

me
 of

fic
er 

ad
vis

e t
he

 
rev

iew
 su

b-c
om

mi
tte

e a
s a

dv
ise

d t
he

 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

su
b-c

om
mi

tte
e?

 

Hig
h 

 

15
 

Re
fer

ral
s t

o t
he

 M
O 

for
 ot

he
r 

ac
tio

n/a
djo

urn
me

nt 
of 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
to 

en
ab

le 
the

 M
O 

to 
ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ss
ibi

lity
 of

 ot
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

• 
To

 be
 ex

plo
red

 in
 th

e l
igh

t o
f a

dv
ice

 
fro

m 
the

 SB
E. 

Aw
ait

 SB
E g

uid
an

ce
. 

 

Page 3Page 11



16
 

Re
fer

ral
s t

o t
he

 Ad
jud

ica
tio

n P
an

el 
un

de
r 

Re
gu

lat
ion

 17
 (s

eri
ou

s c
as

es
 no

t a
pp

rop
ria

te 
for

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 by

 th
e S

tan
da

rds
 

Co
mm

itte
e) 

• 
Th

e p
rio

r c
on

se
nt 

of 
the

 Pr
es

ide
nt 

of 
the

 AP
E i

s r
eq

uir
ed

 be
for

e t
he

 
Sta

nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte

e m
ay

 re
fer

 a 
ma

tte
r to

 th
e A

PE
.  H

ow
 is

 th
e M

O 
to 

be
 au

tho
ris

ed
 to

 se
ek

 th
e c

on
se

nt 
of 

the
 AP

E p
rio

r to
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th

e 
ma

tte
r b

y t
he

 St
an

da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte

e. 

Lo
w 

Le
av

e u
nti

l h
av

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e o

f A
PE

 
ref

err
als

. 
 

17
 

Fin
al 

De
ter

mi
na

tio
ns

 
• 

Ho
w 

mu
ch

 gu
ida

nc
e s

ho
uld

 be
 gi

ve
n 

to 
the

 su
bje

ct 
me

mb
er 

on
 ho

w 
to 

pre
pa

re?
 

• 
Em

ph
as

ise
 th

e s
lot

 in
 th

e p
roc

es
s f

or 
the

 su
bje

ct 
me

mb
er 

to 
ma

ke
 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
s o

n s
an

cti
on

s a
nd

 an
y 

mi
tig

ati
ng

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s. 

Of
fic

ers
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

se
pa

rat
ely

. 

18
 

Pa
ris

h C
ou

nc
ils 

• 
No

tifi
ca

tio
n t

o p
ari

sh
 co

un
cils

 
co

nc
ern

ing
 co

mp
lai

nts
 (s

ee
 To

wn
 & 

Pa
ris

h S
tan

da
rd 

iss
ue

 4)
, to

 pr
ep

are
 

ad
vic

e f
or 

pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils.

 

Of
fic

ers
 to

 lia
ise

 
se

pa
rat

ely
 w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ris
he

s o
n t

his
. 

19
 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 fu
ll C

ou
nc

il 
• 

W
ho

 sh
ou

ld 
pre

se
nt 

the
se

 on
 be

ha
lf o

f 
the

 St
an

da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte

e?
 

Lo
w/

me
diu

m 
 

Page 4Page 12



 

  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

20TH MAY 2009 
 

 
COUNCIL DECISIONS - TERMS OF OFFICE OF PARISH COUNCILS' 
REPRESENTATIVES ON THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE AND PLANNING 
SERVICES CODE OF PRACTICE 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
 To inform the Committee of the decisions made by the Council at its 

meeting on 29th April 2009 in relation to: 
 
  (i) the terms of office of the Parish Councils' Representatives on the 

 Standards Committee; and  
(ii) the Planning Services Code of Practice.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 

That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
I. Terms of office of Parish Councils' Representatives on the Standards 
 Committee 
 
3.1 At its meeting on 31st March 2009 the Standards Committee considered a 

report on proposals to extend the current terms of office of the Parish 
Councils' Representatives on the Committee, and for a further review of the 
terms of office to take place in 2011.   

 
3.2 The Committee supported the proposals and recommended these to the 

Council. 
 
 It was RESOLVED: 
 

(a) that the terms of office of the Parish Councils' Representatives on the 
Standards Committee for 2009 be extended from one year to two 
years; and 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



 

 

(b) that a further review of the terms of office of the Parish Councils' 
Representatives be undertaken in 2011, following the next round of 
parish council elections. 

 
II. Planning Services Code of Practice  
 
3.3  At its meeting on 31st March 2009 the Standards Committee considered a 

report which recommended that the Council's Planning Services Code of 
Practice be reviewed and which sought suggestions from Members for 
areas for consideration for inclusion in the review.   

 
3.4  The Committee supported a review of the Code and also recommended 

additional areas for inclusion within the scope of the review. 
 
  It was RESOLVED: 
 

(a) that a review of the Council's Planning Services Code of Practice be 
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with Group 
Leaders, the Planning Committee, the Standards Committee and 
individual Members; and 

(b) that the scope of the review also include the Planning Committee 
Procedure Rules contained within the Council's Constitution and the 
Public Speaking at Planning Committee Meetings guidance leaflet to 
see whether any aspects of these could be combined. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 This report does not directly link with any of the Council’s objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 There are no risks associated with this report. 

  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 

Page 14



 

 

 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues None 

Personnel Implications  
 

None 

Governance/Performance Management  
 

None 

Community Safety including Section 17 of 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

None 

Policy None 

Environmental None 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director - Partnerships and 
Projects 
 

No 

Executive Director - Services 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
 

Page 15



 

 

13. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
14. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 31st March 
2009. 
Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 29th April 2009. 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:  Debbie Parker-Jones  
  Ethical Standards Officer 
Email:  d.parkerjones@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Direct line:     (01527) 881411 

Page 16



 

  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

20TH MAY 2009 
 
 
STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND FINAL REPORTS ON ALLEGED 
BREACHES OF THE BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL CODE OF 
CONDUCT – CASE REFERENCES: SBE01263-30OBA, SBE01262-30OBA & 
SBE01515-AAGC9 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Non–Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 In June and July 2008 the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee 

considered three separate allegations that Councillor Peter McDonald ("the 
Subject Member") had breached the Code of Conduct of Bromsgrove 
District Council.   

 
1.2 In each of the cases the Assessment Sub-Committee determined that the 

allegation should be referred to the Standards Board for England for 
investigation.   

 
1.3 The Standards Board has now investigated the allegations and the final 

reports of the Ethical Standards Officer are being referred to the Standards 
Committee for information. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
 That the final reports of the Standards Board for England’s Ethical 

Standards Officer in relation to the outcomes of the investigations into the 
three separate allegations against Councillor McDonald be noted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Following referrals from the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee, the 

Standards Board for England has conducted, under section 59 of the Local 
Government Act 2000, investigations into the three separate allegations that 
Councillor Peter McDonald has breached the Code of Conduct of 
Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
3.2  In each of the cases the Ethical Standards Officer has made a finding that 

the Subject Member did not fail to comply with the Code.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



 

 

 
3.3 Copies of the Ethical Standards Officer’s final reports can be found at 

agenda item 16.  These reports are exempt in accordance with paragraphs 
1, 2, 3 and 7A of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as they 
contain information which relate to an individual, are likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual, relate to the business affairs of particular persons 
and of the relevant authority and are subject to an obligation of 
confidentiality.  These reports are also confidential in accordance with 
Section 63 of the Local Government Act 2000 which prohibits the disclosure 
of information gathered during an ethical standards officer’s investigation, 
save for in certain circumstances.  The Ethical Standards Officer 
responsible for the reports has stated that the reports should not be 
disclosed outside of the Standards Committee.   

 
3.4 The reports are for noting only as the Standards Committee has no powers 

to investigate or make its own findings on the cases.  The reports are also 
being brought to the Committee in order to assist the Committee in the 
discharge of its functions under section 54 of Part III of the Local 
Government Act 2000, as amended by the Local Government Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007, in particular “promoting and maintaining 
high standards of conduct by members” and “advising, training or arranging 
to train members……on matters relating to the authority’s code of conduct”.    

     
3.5 Copies of the Standards Board’s public summaries of the Ethical Standards 

Officer’s reports, which have been published on the organisations website 
and which may be disclosed, are appended to this report. 

 
3.6 In cases where there is a finding of no breach the Subject Member has the 

choice of whether a notice detailing the Standards Board’s findings appears 
in the local press. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced primary legislation which set 

out the basis for the implementation of a Members’ Code of Conduct.  This 
was amended by the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act (LGPIHA) 2007 insofar as it related to the application of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct to their private lives.  Further details have been provided 
by the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 and the 
Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001.  The local 
assessment regime was introduced by the LGPIHA 2007, and further 
expanded in the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 which 
also set out the rules and procedures governing the investigation and 
determination of complaints.  

  

Page 18



 

 

 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Improvement – it is vital for the reputation and credibility of the Council that 

complaints against elected Members are seen to be robustly investigated. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The main risk associated with the details included in this report is loss of 
reputation.  This risk is being managed as follows:  
 
Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 3   
Key Objective: Effective ethical governance  

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  

Procurement Issues 
 

None 

Personnel Implications 
 

None 

Governance/Performance Management 
 

Adherence to the 
Code of Conduct is a 
key element of sound 
governance 

Community Safety  including Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None 

Policy 
 

None 

Environmental  
 

None 

 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

 

 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 

Head of Service 
 

No 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All wards 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Standards Board’s public summaries of Ethical Standards Officer’s final  
 reports. 
   
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

§ 18th June 2008 & 15th July 2008 Standards Assessment Sub-Committee 
papers (confidential). 

§ 18th June 2008 & 15th July 2008 Standards Assessment Sub-
Committee Decision Notices (public). 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:  Claire Felton 
Email:  c.felton@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:      (01527) 881429 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



 

  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

20TH MAY 2009 
 

 
MONITORING OFFICER’S REPORT  
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro  
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Standards Committee has requested the Monitoring Officer to report to 

each meeting of the Standards Committee on a number of items, and this 
report sets out the latest position in relation to those items. 

 
1.2 Any further updates will be reported on orally at the meeting. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 Members are requested to note the report and to comment on any aspects 

of this as appropriate; and 
 
2.2 to determine whether, as detailed under paragraph 3.7 of the report, they 

wish for a final draft of the Committee's Annual Report for 2008/09 to be 
referred to Committee, or whether authority can be delegated to the 
Monitoring, in consultation with the Chairman, to finalise this.  

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 Member Investigations and Associated Matters 
3.1 The final reports of the Standards Board for England's Ethical Standards 

Officer in relation to the remaining 3 complaints referred to the Standards 
Board for investigation have now been received.  In each of the cases the 
Ethical Standards Officer has found that there was no failure by the Subject 
Member to comply with the District Council's Code of Conduct.  A separate 
report, which includes a copy of the Standards Board’s public summaries in 
relation to the complaints, can be found at agenda item 7.  The Investigating 
Officer's reports, which are not for public disclosure as they contain both 
exempt information in accordance with paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 7A of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and 
confidential information in accordance with Section 100 A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended, appear at agenda item 16. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



 

 

3.2 The investigation into the complaint referred to the Monitoring Officer for 
local investigation has now commenced.  Once the Investigating Officer's 
final report is available a meeting of the Standards Committee will be 
convened in accordance with Regulation 17 of The Standards Committee 
(England) Regulations 2008, at which point the Committee will, on 
consideration of the report, be required to make one of the following 
findings: 

 
 (i) that it accepts the Monitoring Officer's finding of no failure ("a finding of 

 acceptance"); or 
 (ii) that the matter should be considered at a hearing of the Standards 

 Committee conducted under Regulation 18 [of the said Regulations]; 
 or 

 (iii) that the matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel [for 
 England] for determination.       

   
 Complaints for Local Assessment 
3.3 Since the last meeting of the Standards Committee no complaints have 

been received and there are no complaints currently awaiting assessment.   
 
3.4 A table showing the cumulative totals for local assessment at the time of 

preparation of this report is attached at Appendix A.  Further to the request 
made at the last meeting of the Committee, details as to the nature of the 
complaints received to date under local assessment are now included in the 
table.  

 
 Member Training 
3.5 Members are advised of the following training matters: 
 (i) on 17th March 2009 the Council achieved Primary level of the West 

Midlands Local Government Association Member Development 
Charter; the required benchmark of best practice in elected Member 
development and which included 100% of Members having been 
trained on the Code of Conduct; 

    (ii) on 24th April 2009 the Council achieved Level 3 of the Equality 
Standards for Local Government - the first district authority in 
Worcestershire to do so.  The Council now joins a select group of 21 
out of 238 district councils in England recognized for this level of 
equality standards, with particular note that 100% of elected Members 
have been trained in equality and diversity; 

 (iii) at the meeting of full Council in April Members voted for a new 
overview and scrutiny structure.  One of the requests arising from this 
was that the Audit Board receives detailed training in order to extend 
its work programme and to ensure Members are given sufficient 
support in relation to their roles and responsibilities on the Board and 
to that all appropriate audit functions are being carried out, which the 
Head of Financial Services is now taking forward; 

(iv) a Mock Standards Assessment Sub-Committee training session, which 
 was attended by Ms. D. Roberts (recently appointed Independent 
 Member on the Standards Committee), Mr. S. Malek (Deputy Parish 

Page 30



 

 

 Councils' Representative on the Standards Committee) and 
 Councillor Mrs. A. Doyle (newly appointed  elected Member on the 
 Standards Committee) took place on 11th May 2009; and 
(v) two dates have been established for planning training, including 

context setting training on 21st May 2009 in advance of a Mock 
Planning Meeting on 17th June 2009.    

 
 Parish Council matters 
3.6 A report detailing the Council's decision in relation to the Committee's 

recommendation to extend, for the 2009 appointments, the terms of office of 
the Parish Councils' Representatives on the Standards Committee, and for 
a further review of the terms of office to take place in 2011, appears at 
agenda item 6. 

 
3.7 Annual Report of the Standards Committee 

Regrettably, it has not been possible for officers to draft a copy of the 
second Annual Report of the Standards Committee in time for this meeting.  
As such, this will be circulated to all members of the Committee for 
comment once available.  The Committee is asked to determine whether it 
wishes to see a final draft of the Report prior to its publication or whether it 
is happy to delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with 
the Chairman, to finalise this. 
 

3.8 Standards Board Annual Assembly 
 Members' attention is drawn to the Standards Board Annual Assembly 

which is taking place on Monday 12th and Tuesday 13th October 2009 at 
the ICC in Birmingham, at a cost per delegate of £430.  Details of the event 
programme and planned sessions are attached at Appendix B.  Any 
members of the Committee wishing to attend the Assembly are asked to 
contact the Monitoring Officer as soon as possible to register their interest 
for this.     

 
3.9 Review of the operation and effectiveness of the Members' Code of 

Conduct 
 A report on the review of the operation and effectiveness of the Members' 

Code of Conduct was listed on the Work Programme for this meeting.  
However, in view of the impending introduction of the new Code of Conduct 
it was not felt appropriate for this to be considered by the Committee.  Once 
the new Code of Conduct is adopted by the Council and has been in place 
for a suitable length of time the Committee will be asked to monitor the 
operation of this in accordance with the requirements of the Council's 
Constitution.   

    
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None  
 
 
 

Page 31



 

 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced primary legislation which set 

out the basis for the current ethical governance regime and to enable the 
implementation of a Members’ Code of Conduct.  This was amended by the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (LGPIHA) 2007 
insofar as it related to the application of the Members’ Code of Conduct to 
their private lives.  Further details have been provided by the Local 
Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 and the Relevant 
Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001.  The local assessment regime 
was introduced by the LGPIHA 2007, and further expanded in the 
Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 which also set out the 
rules and procedures governing the investigation and determination of 
complaints.  

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 This item does not link directly with any Council objectives.  
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

• Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and 
• Risk of complaints about elected members.   
 

7.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  
 
• Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 3  
Key Objective: Effective ethical governance  

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None  
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues None 
 

Page 32



 

 

Personnel Implications None 
 

Governance/Performance Management None 
 

Community Safety  including Section 17 of 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None 

Policy 
 

None 
Environmental  
 

None 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
Chief Executive 
 

No 
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 
Executive Director - Services 
 

No 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
 

No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

Yes 
Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix A - Local Assessment Statistics. 
 Appendix B - Standards Board Annual Assembly details. 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None  
 

Page 33



 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name: Claire Felton    Debbie Warren 
 Monitoring Officer   Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Email: c.felton@bromsgrove.gov.uk      d.warren@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881429    (01527) 881609 

Page 34



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
Lo

ca
l A

ss
es

sm
en

t S
tat

ist
ics

 
 

Pe
rio

d 1   
Co

mp
lai
nts

 
rec

eiv
ed
 

Co
mp

lai
nts

 
as
se
ss
ed
 

Re
vie

ws
 

co
nd
uc
ted

 
No

 
fur

the
r 

ac
tio

n 
Re

fer
red

 
for

 ot
he
r 

ac
tio

n 
Re

fer
red

 fo
r 

loc
al 

inv
es
tig

ati
on
 

Re
fer

red
 

to 
SB

E…
 

...a
nd
 

ac
ce
pte

d 
by
 SB

E 
SB

E 
ou
tco

me
 

Fin
al 

de
ter

mi
na
tio
n 

To
tal
 

15
 

15
 2  

0 
8 

1 
1 

5 
5 

5 
0  

  
 

 
Na

tur
e o

f c
om

pla
int

s 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
co
mp

lai
nts

 
Re

gis
ter

 of
 M

em
be

rs'
 In

ter
es

ts 
(fa

ilu
re 

to 
de

cla
re 

in 
ful

l/fa
ilu

re 
to 

co
mp

let
e 

an
d r

etu
rn 

wit
hin

 re
qu

ire
d 2

8 d
ay

s o
f a

do
pti

on
 of

 th
e C

od
e o

f C
on

du
ct)

 
2 

Fa
ilu

re 
to 

tre
at 

oth
ers

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t 

1 
Ac

ted
 in

 a 
ma

nn
er 

wh
ich

 br
ou

gh
t o

ffic
e/t

he
 C

ou
nc

il in
to 

dis
rep

ute
  

4 
Bu

llyi
ng

/in
tim

ida
tio

n o
f C

ou
nc

il o
ffic

ers
 

2 
Co

mb
ine

d: 
bro

ug
ht 

off
ice

 in
to 

dis
rep

ute
/im

pro
pe

r u
se

 of
 po

sit
ion

/ 
pre

ve
nti

on
 of

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 in
for

ma
tio

n t
o w

hic
h a

 pe
rso

n e
nti

tle
d b

y l
aw

  
1 

Ge
ne

ral
 in

ap
pro

pri
ate

 be
ha

vio
ur 

(re
lat

ing
 to

 ac
tio

ns
 at

 a 
me

eti
ng

 of
 th

e 
Co

un
cil'

s P
lan

nin
g C

om
mi

tte
e) 

 
5 

   No
te:

 
     

  1
   -

  T
he

 st
ati

sti
cs

 de
tai

led
 co

ve
r th

e p
eri

od
 si

nc
e t

he
 in

tro
du

cti
on

 of
 lo

ca
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t in
 M

ay
 20

08
 to

 8t
h M

ay
 20

09
 (d

ate
 of

 pr
ep

ara
tio

n o
f th

is 
rep

ort
).  

 
   2    

-   
In 

1 c
as

e t
he

 M
on

ito
rin

g O
ffic

er'
s d

isc
ret

ion
 un

de
r R

eg
ula

tio
n 1

6(1
)(a

)(ii
) o

f th
e S

tan
da

rds
 C

om
mi

tte
e (

En
gla

nd
) R

eg
ula

tio
ns

 20
08

 w
as

 us
ed

 to
 re

fer
  

 
 

the
 m

att
er 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e A
ss

es
sm

en
t S

ub
-C

om
mi

tte
e f

or 
rec

on
sid

era
tio

n. 
 

 Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

20TH MAY 2009 
 

 
REVIEW OF THE LOCAL ASSESSMENT REGIME 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Local assessment of complaints about members has been in operation for 

12 months.  The Committee has asked officers to review certain aspects of 
the process and this report sets out the findings of that review.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the report be noted and that the following decisions be taken: 
 

2.1.1 whether the assessment criteria at Appendix 1 should be revised; 
  
2.1.2 to decide whether a subject member should be notified of a 

complaint before assessment;  
 
2.1.3 to decide whether a review hearing should be a re-hearing or a 

review of the soundness of the decision-making process followed 
by the Assessment Sub-Committee; and 

 
2.1.4 To decide whether to make any recommendations to Council about 

the composition of the Standards Committee.  
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 At its meeting on 31 March 2009 the Standards Committee identified a 

number of areas of the local assessment regime which it considered ought 
to be reviewed at this stage.  Each is set out below. 

 
 Publicity to and promotion of the ethical framework and complaints 

process  
3.2 It was agreed at the meeting on 31 March 2009 that the fact that members 

sign up to and adhere to a Code of Conduct and that an ethical framework 
and standards regime is in place should be more widely publicised.  This 

Agenda Item 10

Page 41



 

should be done in a positive manner to highlight the openness and 
transparency of the decision making process.   

 
3.3 Officers have met with the Council’s Customer First Officer to discuss how 

this might be achieved and a number of ideas were considered.  Key to this 
will be the development of a “brand” for the ethical framework and standards 
regime including a title which can be readily understood by the public. This 
“branding” for the ethical framework will then be used in all subsequent 
publicity, literature, information etc.  The Customer First team have agreed 
to give some thought to this branding and come up with some ideas which 
will be brought to the Committee for consideration.  It is intended that it will 
portray the positive benefits of the framework in language that is not 
legalistic. 

 
3.4 The Council is in the process of developing a new website which will go live 

at the end of September.  It is intended that the new site will be much easier 
for the public to use.  It will include a new dedicated section promoting the 
ethical framework, the Code of Conduct, the Register of Interests, the work 
of the Standards Committee and how to make a complaint about the 
conduct of a councillor, and this section will be headed with the new 
branding.  The section will be drafted in such a way as to be concise with 
links to more detailed information or explanations or to documents (such as 
minutes of meetings, Decision Notices, Register of Interest Forms, the 
Complaint Form and guidance, the Annual Reports etc) to make it more 
user-friendly.  Again the Customer First team has agreed to assist in 
ensuring that the wording is in plain English.  Officers will be receiving 
training in June on using the new website and it will be ready to go live at 
the end of September.  A link to this section will be available from the 
section of the website relating to parish councils, and officers will liaise with 
parish councils in due course to encourage them to include the link on their 
own websites.  It will be made clear how members of the public can 
complain about failures in service delivery, maladministration or the conduct 
of officers and how these differ from complaints about councillors’ conduct, 
with the appropriate links clearly shown. 

 
3.5 Officers have also met with both the Customer Services Manager and the 

Assistant Customer Services Manager at the Customer Service Centre to 
discuss publicity of the ethical framework and standards regime at the 
Centre.  Both are happy for this to be promoted, including the displaying of a 
poster, information leaflets, complaint forms, guidance etc.  Space for this 
will, of course, be somewhat limited as the Centre is part of the 
Worcestershire Hub and therefore also has to utilize its space equally for 
publicity of County functions.  Officers will also be speaking with relevant 
County Council officers to see whether they wish for details of the County 
Council Member complaints system (which affects some of the district 
councillors in their dual capacity) to be highlighted, with a view to having as 
prominent a position as possible at the Centre for the required publicity to 
ensure this doesn't end up becoming 'lost' in with the existing information.  
The public is currently able to access the Council's website (including the 

Page 42



 

Register of Members' Interests) via a computer terminal at the Centre, with 
two additional terminals due to be made available once the relocation of the 
Planning Reception from the Council House to the Customer Services 
Centre takes place next month.  Further to a suggestion from officers, it has 
been agreed that prior to implementation of the new publicity and the launch 
of the Council's new website, officers will conduct training sessions for the 
Customer Services Advisors at the Centre to ensure that they are fully 
aware of the ethical framework and standards regime and can point the 
public to the relevant elements of this.  Staff at the Centre are not currently 
familiar with the separate Member complaints system as they have not had 
cause to use this to date, and have confirmed that their first instinct would 
be to direct any complaints through the Council's iCasework system; the 
general customer feedback system in place for issues linked to service 
delivery.  Any complaints about Members logged on iCasework would 
however still filter through to the appropriate officers and would be actioned 
in the normal manner.  As detailed at paragraph 3.4 above, links to both the 
iCasework system and Ombudsman complaints will appear alongside the 
Member complaints system to ensure the public are fully aware of the 
separate complaint processes.       

 
3.6 It is proposed that 2010 should promote local democracy in the run up to the 

next local council elections.  The ethical framework will be actively promoted 
and explained throughout this campaign and will receive much greater 
prominence than in previous years. 

 
3.7 Other means of promoting the ethical framework which will be utilised 

include: 
 
• Coverage in the Together Bromsgrove publication about the 
obligations of councillors to adhere to the Code of Conduct; 

 
• Press coverage surrounding the adoption of the new Code of 
Conduct later this year; 

 
• Press coverage surrounding the independent member vacancies; 

 
• Press coverage surrounding the adoption of the new Code of 
Conduct which is expected to be published this year; it is expected 
that this will be published in about June 2009 and therefore it is likely 
that the Council will be adopting it in about September 2009.  This 
will coincide with the launch of the new website and it is therefore 
proposed that there should be a high profile press release or series 
of releases promoting the standards regime; and 

 
• Working with parish councils to promote the framework in parished 
areas. 

 
 

Page 43



 

3.8 Officers have looked carefully at the Complaint Form and Guidance which 
has been used for the past year.  It is acknowledged that both could be set 
out and written in a simpler, clearer manner and in a more logical order, and 
officers will set about redrafting these for implementation as soon as the 
new Code of Conduct has been introduced.  Drafts of the form and 
guidance will be presented to members of the Committee for comments 
before implementation. 

 
3.9 Members are requested simply to note the progress being made; regular 

updates on progress will be given in future Monitoring Officer Update 
reports. 

 
 Assessment criteria  
3.10 The current assessment criteria are attached as Appendix 1.  This is 

intended to be a guide for members of an Assessment Sub-Committee 
when deciding whether a complaint should be investigated rather than a 
prescriptive decision-making protocol.  Members are invited to comment on 
its usefulness in the assessment process and to suggest any improvements.   

 
3.11 Officers are seeking guidance from the Standards Board for England about 

whether or not it is appropriate for the Sub-Committee to take into account 
previous or concurrent complaints about a member which may demonstrate 
that a pattern of behaviour emerges; conflicting advice has been received 
on this issue in the past and officers are seeking to obtain a definitive 
response on this point. 

 
 Notification of complaint to subject member prior to assessment 
3.12 The Regulations governing local assessment give the Monitoring Officer the 

discretion as to whether or not to notify the subject member that a complaint 
about him or her has been received before it has been assessed.  The SBE 
guidance does not direct or suggest a course of action, but advises that in 
determining its practice the Standards Committee must consider the 
implications of s63 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
3.13 Section 63 LGA prohibits the disclosure of any information obtained by a 

Monitoring Officer in the course of performing any of his or her functions 
relating to complaints about members except in specified circumstances.   
Once of the exceptions is that a Monitoring Officer may disclose information 
received as part of a complaint about a member if doing will enable a 
Standards Committee or Sub-Committee to perform any of its functions.  

 
3.14 Therefore the Committee needs to decide if notification to the subject 

member will assist it in enabling it to perform any of its functions (which 
could include the final determination of the matter).  If the Committee 
decides that it would or could (and this might include the example given at 
the last meeting of the preservation of necessary evidence), then the SBE 
guidance goes on to add that the Data Protection Act would apply, therefore 
prohibiting the disclosure of any information about the complainant or any 

Page 44



 

other person referred to in the complaint unless one of the exceptions to the 
Data Protection Act applies.   

 
3.15 Finally, the SBE guidance advises that, if the Committee decides that it 

does intend to notify the subject member about a complaint before it has 
been assessed, the only information which can be given is the fact that a 
complaint has been made, the name of the complainant (subject to Data 
Protection and any request by the complainant for confidentiality) and the 
relevant paragraphs of the Code which may have been breached; the 
notification should state that a written summary of the allegation will only be 
provided to the subject member once the Assessment Sub-Committee has 
met to consider the complaint, and the date of this meeting if known.  
Members might question whether or not it is worth making such a bland 
notification. 

 
3.16 To date it has been the Committee’s practice not to notify the subject 

member about the complaint until an initial assessment decision has been 
made.  The reasons for this were: 

• This reflected the practice formerly adopted by the SBE when it had 
responsibility for assessment; and 

• It removes the risk of the subject member “lobbying” members of the 
Assessment Sub-Committee or seeking to introduce evidence at the 
assessment stage. 

 
3.17 At the last meeting, Members expressed the view that it might be helpful to 

notify the subject member before assessment that a complaint has been 
received to ensure that essential evidence is preserved.  However, in the 
light of the SBE guidance, it seems that it would not be possible to alert the 
subject member to the nature of the complaint and therefore the aim of 
evidence preservation could not be achieved. 

 
3.18 Members are requested to decide whether they wish to continue with the 

existing practice or whether they wish a notification to be sent to the subject 
member before assessment.  

 
 Decision Notices 
3.19 Officers will be reviewing the content and format of all of the template 

decision notices/letters, which are currently based on Standards Board 
models.  Consideration will also be given to the separate notices required 
under Regulations 8 and 11 of The Standards Committee (England) 
Regulations 2008 and any proposals in this regard will be brought back to 
the Committee for approval.    

  
 Review of Assessment Decisions 
3.20 To date no requests for reviews of assessment decisions have been 

received and the Committee has not had to give detailed consideration as to 
how to conduct a review.  However, there are 2 schools of thought as to 
what constitutes a review of an assessment decision and the Committee is 
asked to decide which approach it will adopt.   

Page 45



 

 
3.21 On the one hand, a review can simply be a re-run of the assessment 

hearing by a different group of members, based on exactly the same 
information given to the initial Assessment Sub-Committee.   

 
3.22 On the other hand, the review can be a consideration of whether or not the 

Assessment Sub-Committee followed the correct procedures, took relevant 
considerations into account and discounted irrelevant considerations. 

 
3.23 The former is the view of the SBE.  However, officers have been advised  by 

specialist solicitors that this is not the correct approach; if the review hearing  
is effectively an assessment hearing then theoretically it should also be 
capable of being subject to review.  Officers are advised that, 
notwithstanding the SBE guidance, the second approach is the one which 
the Council should follow.  This is similar to the approach taken on a judicial 
review, in that the Review Sub-Committee would ensure that the decision 
making process was sound and that the decision reached was not 
unreasonable based on the information available, but it would not generally 
seek to find that the Assessment Sub-Committee should have reached a 
different conclusion unless it concludes that there has been an irregularity. 

 
3.24 Both approaches are valid, and members are requested to consider which 

they consider to be the most appropriate. 
 
3.25 Members should bear in mind that if a review is requested and more 

information is provided by the complainant at that stage, the correct 
procedure would be for the original Assessment Sub-Committee to re-
assess the complaint with all the new information rather than review the 
initial decision in the light of the new information. 

 
 Parish Councils Publicity and Promotion of the Standards Regime and 

Complaints Process 
3.26 It has been identified that the standards regime and the complaints process 

relating to parish councillors probably needs to be given a higher profile at 
parish level.  It is proposed that officers work with the Parish Forum/WCALC 
to determine how best to do this; ideally this would tie in with the raising of 
the profile of the District Council’s standards regime around September and 
parishes would be encouraged to participate.  It is therefore suggested that 
an item is placed on the Parish Forum and/or WCALC agendas for either 
their June or September meeting (or possibly both) and that officers liaise 
with the Parish Representatives on the Committee.  Members’ views and 
suggestions are sought. 

 
 Parish Councils – Notification of Complaints 
3.27 A recent Town and Parish Standard published by the SBE suggested that 

principal authorities should work with their parish councils to formulate a 
process by which it is clear what parish council clerks should do when they 
receive notification of a complaint about one of their members.  If a clear 
process is agreed by all parishes it would remove any difficulty or 

Page 46



 

embarrassment a clerk may face publicising a complaint made about one of 
their members.  Again it is suggested that officers work with the Parish 
Representatives on the Committee with a view to placing an item on the 
agenda for the Parish Forum and/or WCALC meetings in either June or 
September. 

 
 Composition of the Standards Committee 
3.28 During the past year a number of queries have arisen relating to the 

composition of the Standards Committee, some from within and some from 
outside the Committee.   These are: 

 
• Should the same members be able to sit on both the Assessment 
Sub-Committee and Final Determination Sub-Committee?  Again 
there are 2 schools of thought; one suggests that the impartiality of 
members who dealt with the assessment of a complaint based on the 
evidence of the complainant only might be compromised in the event 
that they come to sit on the Final Determination Sub-Committee.  
However, when this issues was considered by this Committee last 
year it was satisfied that this would not be the case.  It has yet to be 
tested as the Committee has not yet undertaken a final determination 
of a complaint which it has assessed itself and it might be more 
appropriate to delay consideration of this issue until the Committee 
has more experience of this, but the Committee’s views are 
welcomed. 

 
• Should the size of the Committee be increased?  This would only be 
a relevant consideration if the Committee decided that members who 
sat on the Assessment Sub-Committee would not be able to sit on 
the Final Determination Sub-Committee and so again it is suggested 
that this issue is not considered at this stage. 

 
• Should there be a Cabinet member on the Standards Committee?  
The most recent guidance from the SBE states that the Council 
should give consideration to this issue.  The legislation does not 
require the Standards Committee to include a member of the 
Cabinet.  However, the SBE recommends that the Council should 
consider whether it is appropriate to appoint a Cabinet member as, 
on the one hand, appointing a Cabinet member might show that the 
Committee is supported and respected by all parts of the Council, but 
on the other, not having a Cabinet member could reflect a degree of 
independence from the political leadership of the Council.   Members 
are requested to consider whether or not to make a recommendation 
to Council to amend the composition of the Committee. 

 
• It has been suggested that the Parish Representatives be required to 
have been elected as opposed to having been co-opted.  For the 
sake of clarity, the local government legislation treats a member who 
takes office as a result of an uncontested election as being an 
elected member.  Co-opted members of parish councils are required 

Page 47



 

to adhere to the same requirements as elected members and have 
the same obligations as elected members.  It may be that the issue to 
be considered is the selection process for the Parish 
Representatives; at present the selection is left entirely to the 
Bromsgrove CALC Committee.  By analogy, the Independent 
Members of the Committee are selected by the Council in 
accordance with selection criteria prepared by the Standards 
Committee and perhaps consideration could instead be given to 
adapting the process by which Parish Representatives are selected.  
The current Parish Representatives have been appointed until the 
2011 election and it would be at that point that any new selection 
process would be implemented.  Members are requested to consider 
whether any recommendation should be made to Council in this 
respect.  

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The Local Government Act 2000 introduced primary legislation to enable the 

implementation of a Members’ Code of Conduct, and this was amended by 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 insofar as 
it related to the application of the Members’ Code of Conduct to their private 
lives.  The local assessment regime was introduced by the LGPIHA 2007, 
and further expanded in the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 
2008 which also set out the rules and procedures governing the 
investigation and determination of complaints. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1   This item does not link directly with any Council objectives.  
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
7.1 The main risk associated with the details included in this report is: 
 

• Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and 
• Risk of complaints about elected members.   

  
7.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  

 
• Risk Register: Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 3  
Key Objective: Effective ethical governance  

  
 
 

Page 48



 

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  None 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None  
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues 
 

None 
Personnel Implications 
 

None 
Governance/Performance Management 
 

None 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 

None 

Policy 
 

None 
Environmental  
 

None 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
Chief Executive 
 

No 
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 
Executive Director - Services 
 

No 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
 

No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

 

Page 49



 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All wards  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Assessment criteria  
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None  
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Claire Felton and Debbie Warren  
E Mail: c.felton@bromsgrove.gov.uk & 

d.warren@bromsgrove.gov.uk  
Tel:       (01527) 881429 & (01527) 881609 

Page 50



Appendix 

Version date: 30.09.08 

 

 Standards Assessment Sub-Committee - Assessment Criteria 
 
 

Ref:  .........................   Subject Member:  .................................................................. 
 
 

 
1 Is the Subject Member a member of the Council or a parish 

council covered by the Standards Committee? 
 

 
2 Was the Subject Member in office at the time of the alleged 

breach of the Code of Conduct? 
 

 
3 Is the Subject Member still a member of the Council, or a 

member of another authority? 
 

 
4 Has the complaint already been the subject of an 

investigation or other action relating to the Code of 
Conduct by this or another regulatory authority? 

 

 
5 Would the complaint, if proven, be a breach of the Code 

under which the Subject Member was operating at the time 
of the alleged misconduct?  

 

 
6 Is the complaint about something that happened so long 

ago that there would be little benefit in taking action now? 
 

 
7 Has enough information been submitted to enable the Sub-

Committee to reach a decision? 
 

 
8 Is the complaint too trivial to warrant further action?  

 
9 Does the complaint appear to be simply malicious, 

politically motivated or tit-for-tat? 
 

 
10 Does the Sub-Committee consider that the complaint 

should be referred for investigation? 
 

 
11 If the complaint is to be referred for investigation is it 

appropriate for this to be investigated locally?  
 

 
12 Does the Sub-Committee consider that the complaint 

should be referred for other action? 
 

 
 
Signed:     …………………………………………....  (Chairman) 
 
Dated:       ……………………………………...….... 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

20TH MAY 2009 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder Councillor Geoff Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities 

and Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
 This report sets out a Work Programme for the Standards Committee.   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 

It is recommended that, subject to any amendments made to it by the 
Committee, the Work Programme be approved. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Standards Committee established a Work Programme at its meeting on 

7th February 2008. 
 
3.2 A Work Programme is beneficial to the Committee for the following reasons: 
    
 (a) to ensure the Committee is fulfilling its roles and functions in 

 accordance with the Council's Constitution; 
  

(b) to enable officers to be proactive in supporting the Committee and for 
the Committee to be equally proactive in introducing change to ensure 
the Council is an ethical organisation, which promotes and maintains 
high standards of conduct of elected Members, and is an organisation 
which relates to the community and improves the service it provides; 
and 

 
(c) the rising profile of standards committees and, in particular, the 

changes brought about by the introduction of the local assessment of 
complaints of alleged breaches by district and parish councillors of the 
Code of Conduct, under the Local Government and Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007.   

 
3.3 The Work Programme will appear as a regular item on all Standard 

Committee agendas. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 53



 

 

 
3.4 Officers will update the Work Programme, as appropriate, in between 

meetings and any amendments to the Work Programme will be referred to 
the next meeting of the Committee for approval.  Members of the Committee 
are welcome to contact officers, at any time, with suggested changes.     

 
3.5 The Committee is asked to consider the Work Programme and to comment 

on this accordingly. 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The Work Programme is linked to the Council's Improvement Objective, 

Priority - Customer Service.   
 
6.2 A Work Programme will assist in informing Members, officers and the public 

of the work being undertaken by the Committee in ensuring that the Council 
is an ethical organisation, which is proactively working towards 
improvement.  

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 None 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues   None 
 

Personnel Implications   
 

None 
 

 

Page 54



 

 

 
Governance/Performance Management   A Work Programme 

will assist the 
Committee in being 
proactive in fulfilling 
its role in ethical 
governance.    
 

Community Safety  including Section 17 of 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998   
 

None 

Policy 
 

None 
Environmental None 

 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
Chief Executive 
 

No 
Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects)  
 

No 
Executive Director (Services) 
 

No 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
 

No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Standards Committee Work Programme. 
 
 

Page 55



 

 

 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Debbie Parker-Jones, 
   Ethical Standards Officer 
Email:   d.parkerjones@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Direct line:      (01527) 881411 
 

Page 56



 

 

APPENDIX 
 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

 
[Note: Any items that it is proposed should be removed from the Work Programme 
are denoted by a strikethrough, with any new additions and/or rescheduled items 
appearing in bold italics.] 
 
 

Meeting date Item(s) for consideration 
 

22nd July 2009  
 

23rd September 2009 
 
 

• Annual Ombudsman Complaint Statistics (final report 
for period ending 31st March 2009 and to include 
comparison with neighbouring authorities) 

• Parish Councils' Training Programme - update 
11th November 2009  

 
13th January 2010  

 
24th March 2010 • Ombudsman Complaint Statistics (interim update for 

period ending 31st September 2009) 
• Review of Council protocols on Member-Officer and 
Member-Member Relations 

• Parish Councils' Training Programme - update 
• Review of the operation of the Standards Committee 
• Calendar of meetings - 2010/2011 

May 2010               
(date to be 
determined) 

• Annual Report of the Standards Committee 2009/10  
• Review of the operation and effectiveness of the 
Members' Code of Conduct (provisional date dependent 
on when new Code of Conduct introduced) 

• Review of Planning Services Code of Practice 
(provisional date dependent on when 2009 review 
completed / review outcomes) 

 
 
 

Page 57



 

 

Later meetings • 2011 Review of the terms of office of the Parish 
Councils' Representatives on the Standards 
Committee (review to be completed prior to June 2011 
CALC nominations to full Council - Min. 125/08 (i) of 29th 
April 2009 Council refers) 

Note:  All meetings of the Committee will include regular items such as: 
•    Minutes of the previous meeting; 
•    Monitoring Officer's Report; and  
•    Parish Councils' Representatives' Report. 

 
 

Page 58



Agenda Item 15

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 31st March 2009
	6 Council Decisions
	7 Standards Board for England final reports on alleged breaches of the Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct
	7a SBE public summary (03-08)
	7b SBE public summary (05-08)
	7c SBE public summary (07-08)

	8 Monitoring Officer's Report
	8a Monitoring Officer's Report (appendix A - local assessment statistics)
	8b Monitoring Officer's Report (appendix B - SBE Annual Assembly)

	10 Review of the Local Assessment Regime
	10a Assessment Sub-Committee Assessment Criteria form (30 09 08)

	12 Work Programme
	15 To confirm the accuracy of the confidential minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 31st March 2009
	16 Standards Board for England final reports on alleged breaches of the Bromsgrove District Council Code of Conduct
	16a SBE confidential report (03-08)
	16b SBE confidential report (05-08)
	16c SBE confidential report (07-08)


